
Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
Governance and Commissioning 
 

PO Box 1720  
 

Huddersfield 
 

 

HD1 9EL 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Jenny Bryce-Chan 
 

Email: jenny.bryce-chan@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Tuesday 11 July 2023 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel 
 

The Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel will meet in the Meeting Room 
3 - Town Hall, Huddersfield at 11.00 am on Monday 3 July 2023. 
 
This meeting will be live webcast. To access the webcast please go to the Council’s 
website at the time of the meeting and follow the instructions on the page. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

The Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel members are:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Member  

Councillor Yusra Hussain (Chair) 
Councillor Zarina Amin 
Councillor Tyler Hawkins 
Councillor Susan Lee-Richards 
Councillor Harry McCarthy 
Councillor John Taylor 
Chris Friend (Co-Optee) 
Jonathan Milner (Co-Optee) 

 

  



 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 
To receive apologies for absence from those Members who are 
unable to attend the meeting. 

 

 
 

 

2:   Interests 
 
The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

 

3:   Admission of the Public 
 
Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 
 

 
 

 

4:   Deputations/Petitions 
 
The Panel will receive any petitions and/or deputations from 
members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people can 
attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also submit a petition 
at the meeting relating to a matter on which the body has powers 
and responsibilities. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10, Members of the 
Public must submit a deputation in writing, at least three clear 
working days in advance of the meeting and shall subsequently be 
notified if the deputation shall be heard. A maximum of four 
deputations shall be heard at any one meeting. 
 

 
 

 



 

5:   Public Question Time 
 
To receive any public questions. 
  
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 11, the period for the 
asking and answering of public questions shall not exceed 15 
minutes. 
 
Any questions must be submitted in writing at least three clear 
working days in advance of the meeting. 
 

 
 

 

6:   Introduction to the Growth & Regeneration Directorate 
 
The Panel will receive a presentation which gives an overview of the 
Growth and Regeneration Directorate. 
 
Contact:  Joanne Bartholomew, Service Director, Development 
 

 
 

1 - 8 

7:   Housing Delivery Plan Update 
 
To provide an update on progress and next steps relating to the 
delivery of sites in the Housing Delivery Plan to secure Housing 
Growth outcomes. 

 

Contact:    Joanne Bartholomew, Service Directorate, Development  
              

 

 
 

9 - 26 

8:   Small Centres Programme 
 
To update the Panel on progress being made on the Local Centres 
programme. 
 
Contact:  Joanne Bartholomew, Service Director, Development and 
Simon Taylor, Head of Town Centre Programmes 
 

 
 

27 - 32 

 
 
 



G&R Scrutiny Panel
An Overview of Growth & Regeneration

3rd July 2023

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 6



Click to edit Master title style
Welcome and Introduction 

Joanne Bartholomew

Service Director
DevelopmentP

age 2



Click to edit Master title style

Agenda for today; a focus on Growth and Regeneration

• Overview – why investment matters. Joanne Bartholomew
• Showcasing Our Cultural Heart. Joanne Bartholomew
• Delivering our vision for Kirklees. Video

P
age 3



Our Vision
Our vision for Kirklees is to be a district which combines a strong, sustainable economy with a great quality of life – leading to thriving 

communities, growing businesses, high prosperity and low inequality where people enjoy better health throughout their lives.

Shaped by People

Our Outcomes

Well

Growth and Regeneration Directorate Priorities

To enable and drive sustainable and inclusive economic growth 
across Kirklees

To ensure effective delivery of project and core business as usual 
services during a period of constrained resources 

Skills and Regeneration
• Major Projects 
• Business and Economy 
• Employment and Skills 
• Planning

Development 
• Housing Growth
• Corporate Landlord and Capital 
• Housing Services
• Town Centres

Homes and Neighbourhoods
• Operations 
• Assets and Development
• Housing Management and Partnerships

Best Start Independent Aspire and Achieve Sustainable Economy Safe and Cohesive Clean and Green Efficient and Effective

Service Outcomes

Working with People, Partners and in our Places

P
age 4



Click to edit Master title style

Why does this matter?
• Increased productivity in Kirklees economy through better 

housing, skills & jobs, means better wages and quality of 
life for residents

• Business growth results from improved productivity; i.e. 
more start ups, improved business survival, expansion of 
high growth businesses resulting in more and better jobs 

• Council investment in town centre Blueprints reduces risk 
& encourages external investors. Partnership investment 
of £2 billion confirmed since Blueprints announced

• Inward investment and business growth leads to 
increased Business Rates & Council Tax revenue that 
support other services and sustains the Council.

• Reduced reliance on demand driven means tested 
services, i.e. Childrens, adult care, social housing, 
homelessness, Council Tax Benefit etc.

• More resilient economy is formed, lessening the impact of 
future economic downturns

Quality of 
Life

people

Place

Growth and 
Regeneration

Partners

P
age 5



Click to edit Master title style

Political priorities

Political 
Priorities

start up, 
growth and 

inward 
investment

Dewsbury 
Town 
Plan 

Trans 
Pennine 
Upgrade 

Cultural 
Heart 

George 
Hotel 

Housing 
Quality 

Tenant 
Voice 

Tenant 
Safety

Housing 
Growth 

Employment 
and Skills 

plan 

P
age 6



Click to edit Master title style

In the next 5 years….

People

PartnersPlace

Dewsbury Riverside – 2,500 new homes

Daisy Hill, Fieldhouse and Bond Street – a mix of 
new homes, apartments and commercial space

Ashbrow & Soothill – 610 new homes including 
54 affordable homes

Meet the housing requirement in the Local Plan 
of 20,000 additional homes (1730 per annum)

High rise strategy

New Council Housing

670 Hectares of new tree coverage (Calder 
Catchment – White Rose Forests)

1000 Hectares of Green Streets in W Yorks

Increase on the 35,000 trees planted in Kirklees by 
2021/22

Station to Stadium Enterprise Corridor and 
Investment Zone (increase in private sector jobs 

and investment; growth & retention of skills in 
region)

Implementation of Huddersfield’s Incubation and 
Innovation Programme

900 extra learner places delivered through the 
Kirklees Process Manufacturing Centre

Increase in apprentice and work placement offer 

Tenant Satisfaction Measures reflect safe and 
compliant homes, where tenants feel valued 
(reductions in complaints, cases of disrepair; 
increase in tenant engagement and collaborative 
decision making)

Corporate assets are transferred to the 
community and used for inclusive, viable and 
sustainable  activity

Active Transport & Bus infrastructure in North 
Kirklees improved (working towards evidencing 
modal shift; enabling people and making travel 

infrastructure safer)

Sustainable Road Transport Infrastructure in 
Huddersfield improved

Healthy Town Centres maintenance of assets, 
reduction in commercial vacancies, clean and 

safe town centres)

P
age 7



Click to edit Master title style
Delivering Our Vision for Kirklees; what we 

do 

8

P
age 8



 

 

 
 
Name of meeting: Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel 

Date: 3rd July 2023 

Title of report: Housing Delivery Plan Update 

Purpose of report: To provide an update on progress and next steps relating to the delivery 
of sites in the Housing Delivery Plan to secure Housing Growth outcomes. 

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?      

N/A 

 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s 
Forward Plan (key decisions and private 
reports)? 
 

Key Decision – N/A 

Public report 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

No 

 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Legal Governance and 
Commissioning? 
 

David Shepherd – Strategic Director, 
Growth and Regeneration – 21st June 
2023 

N/A 
 
 
N/A  

Cabinet member portfolio Cllr Graham Turner – Regeneration 

Cllr Cathy Scott – Housing and 
Democracy 

 

 

Electoral wards affected: All 

Ward councillors consulted: Ward councillors were consulted in 2018 prior to the original 
Cabinet report establishing the programme of activity. This is an update report. 

Public or private: Public 

Has GDPR been considered? There is no personal data contained in this report. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


 

 

1. Summary 
 
Housing Growth and Regeneration have an important role to play in allowing Kirklees 
to build on its strengths and achieve its growth potential.  There is a need to provide 
high quality housing on a scale and of a type that responds to the needs of a growing 
population and economy.  The report approved at Cabinet on 29th August 2018 and 
subsequent update report to Cabinet on 20th January 2020 set out the approach to 
delivering the growth element of the Housing Strategy and provided a clear framework 
to guide activity to support Housing Growth.   

 
We are focussed on delivering the maximum number of affordable and low carbon 
quality homes. The Housing Growth activity includes the development of 41 Council 
owned sites through a variety of projects and programmes and the delivery of Town 
Centre residential development at both Huddersfield and Dewsbury complementing 
wider Blueprint regeneration activity.   
 
Support is also provided to assist private sector developers in bringing forward their 
sites. This includes site-specific planning advice, brokering contact with potential 
development or investment partners and advice in relation to overcoming barriers to 
development. 
 
The activity covers the following projects and programmes. 

 Supporting the delivery of Strategic Allocation sites  

 Accelerated Construction Homes England grant funded Programme.  

 Town Centre Living Programme 

 Specialist and Supported Housing 

 Affordable Housing  

 Pipeline sites   

 Registered Providers programme 

 Brokerage service 
 

 
In addition to the above the team in Homes and Neighbourhoods are delivering a 
Council New Build programme (currently focussed on regenerating smaller sites close 
to existing Council housing) and the Housing Buy Back Scheme. 
 
Despite a very challenging period over the past three years, resulting in supply and 
workforce issues and ongoing inflation pressures, progress has been made across the 
programme.  Appendix 1 provides a summary of this in relation to the various Housing 
Growth programmes and projects currently underway and in development. 
 

2. Further Information  

2.1 Funding position  

Significant work has taken place over the last three years to further develop the 
programme and options for delivering Housing Growth.  Covid and other economic 
pressures have, as with all Capital projects, impacted viability of many schemes, some 
of which have paused, and many have increased in cost and delivery times have 
lengthened.   

During this period work has continued to strengthen relationships with partners and 
create new partnerships to support positive outcomes and create capacity for delivery.  
This includes the successful work with West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Homes 

Page 10



 

 

England which enabled us to secure grant funding of over £1M from the Housing 
Pipeline revenue fund to support the development of sites and bring them forward for 
delivery.   

2.2 Strategic Partnerships  

We are also active in the Strategic Place Partnership group, working with regional 
colleagues to drive forward work to support key strategic sites such as Bradley Park 
and Dewsbury Riverside; details are set out in Appendix 1.  Work on Bradley Park is 
moving into preparation for delivery of phase 1 and this requires additional feasibility 
and development activity to support next steps, funding to support this has been 
identified and is recommended for approval as part of this report. 

2.3 Pipeline sites  

Utilising the Housing Pipeline revenue fund grant, option and feasibility work has 
progressed across many of the sites in the pipeline programme and we are now able 
to explore where appropriate the opportunity for disposal.  Each site will be taken on 
merit and consideration will be given to supporting the Councils capital receipt target 
and securing housing growth outcomes. 

2.4 Overall delivery  

The overall delivery position is set out in Appendix 1.  Delivery through the programme 
is currently estimated at 2,124 units to be delivered by 2030 and we are currently on 
site or in contract for circa 800 homes.   

2.5 Affordable / discounted market homes  
 

First Homes became a mandatory Central Government requirement from 28 
December 2021. They are a new Affordable Home Ownership (AHO) product to be 
delivered via Section 106 planning obligations on residential development sites. The 
Council is also involved in the sale process for other AHO properties, including 
Discount Market Sale properties and Starter Homes.  Given the work involved and the 
capacity needed to carry this out it is proposed that the Council introduces a fee to 
cover reasonable costs of the Council for processing the sale of AHO secured via the 
planning system (First Homes, Starter Homes and Discount Market Sale). This work 
will be delivered by the Housing Growth team and Appendix 2 sets out the detail of the 
work and proposals for charging.   
 

3. Implications for the Council 

3.1 Working with People 

The Housing Growth work covers a wide range of activity and the Council is working with 
a range of partners to deliver market and affordable housing which meets local needs, 
alongside specialist accommodation such as Extra Care schemes and supported 
accommodation for people with learning disabilities. There is therefore significant benefit 
to Kirklees citizens in providing access to housing across a range of tenures as part of a 
programme of quality housing developments. In addition, as part of the construction 
process, the benefits of the local supply chain and opportunities for apprenticeships and 
training is maximised at every opportunity. 

3.2 Working with Partners 

Page 11



 

 

To deliver the significant number of new homes needed the Council is working with a wide 
range of partners in both the private and public sector such as Registered Providers, 
Homes England, West Yorkshire Combined Authority, private sector developers and 
investors.  

Working with partners brings additional resources, expertise and capacity to deliver 
projects, as set out in section 2 above. 

3.3 Place Based Working 

The needs of Kirklees residents and communities varies widely and by using intelligence 
and information we are focussing our resources in the best way possible to achieve the 
best outcome for residents. The specialist housing including the Extra Care Housing 
programme is a good example of this where we are using information on housing needs 
and age demographics to ensure best use of our sites and meet the needs of local 
communities. 

We are also using Place Standard tool which has supported the work to progress the first 
phase on Dewsbury Riverside. 

3.4      Climate Change and Air Quality 

Taking into account the Climate Emergency resolution we are exploring all opportunities 
to encourage energy efficient building methods, supporting the delivery of low carbon 
housing. A key example of this is the work Thirteen group are delivering across five sites 
in Kirklees.  The commitment on this project is to maximise improvements to 
environmental standards and delivery of low carbon homes across all five sites. 

Our work on housing in town centres seeks to re-use existing assets for housing in 
sustainable locations within easy reach of strategic transport links via trains and buses. 
The proximity to town centre leisure and retail uses removes the need for car ownership.  

3.5      Improving outcomes for children 

Well designed, energy efficient housing built to nationally described space standards, and 
with (where applicable to the site) provision of open space on site helps provide children 
with the best start in life.  

3.6   Financial Implications for the people living or working in Kirklees 

Capital funding for Bradley Park has been identified to progress next steps of 
development.  
 
There are no financial impacts on wider residents of Kirklees.  Our focus is on well 
designed energy efficient homes such as those delivered by Keepmoat and Thirteen 
Group as set out in Appendix 1. This will result in savings on energy costs for tenants and 
residents living in these homes when compared to other, less energy efficient properties. 

3.7   Other (eg Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)/Legal/Financial or Human 
Resources) Consultees and their opinions 

An Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) has been carried out alongside the Cabinet 
Report. The IIA indicates that there will be a neutral impact on communities including 

Page 12



 

 

people identified as having a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 2010 and 
satisfies the public sector equality duty imposed on the council. The IIA also sets out 
that there will be a neutral impact on the environment. 

 
4.       Consultation and Engagement 

 
Engagement with ward members takes place on a site by site basis, as proposals for 
each site progress.  For example, local ward members are informed when survey work 
takes place on site, and at key points during the development process e.g. when 
planning applications are made or when there is a start on site. 

 
Portfolio holders are informed of progress on the overall housing growth programme 
via their regular briefing sessions, and specific, strategic issues and decisions in 
relation to each site are taken to them for a decision. 

 
5. Next steps and timelines 

 
The current position in relation to the range of Housing Growth programmes and 
projects is included in Appendix 1. Whilst rigorous project management and risk 
mitigation measures are in place across all of the Housing Growth projects the activity 
is subject to a range of external factors and risks which may impact adversely on 
delivery.  We will continue to work closely with our partners in Homes England and 
WYCA to minimise risk across the programme and secure resources to bolster delivery 
of Housing Growth.  
 

6.        Officer recommendations and reasons 
 

Officers recommend that: 
 
            1. Members of the Scrutiny Panel note the content of this report. 

 
7. Contact officer  

 
      Adele Buckley 

Head of Housing Growth and Regeneration  
adele.buckley@kirklees.gov.uk   
 
Thomas Fish 
Strategic Partnership Lead – Housing Growth and Regeneration 
thomas.fish@kirklees.gov.uk  

 
8. Background Papers and History of Decisions 

 
Cabinet Report – Housing Delivery Plan. Approved 29th August 2018 
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g5703/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th
-Aug-2018%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

Cabinet Report – Dewsbury Riverside Masterplan. Approved 19th March 2019 

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g5613/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th
-Mar-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

Cabinet Report – Housing Delivery Plan Update.  Approved 20th January 2020 

Page 13

mailto:adele.buckley@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:thomas.fish@kirklees.gov.uk
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g5703/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Aug-2018%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g5703/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Aug-2018%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g5613/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Mar-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g5613/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Mar-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


 

 

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g6297/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th
-Jan-2020%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
Dewsbury Riverside Development Strategy.  Approved 25th February 2020 
 
Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday 25th February 2020, 4.00 pm | Kirklees Council 
 
Cabinet report – Disposal of land at Kenmore Drive, Cleckheaton 
 
Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday 26th May 2020, 5.00 pm | Kirklees Council 

Cabinet report - Registered Providers Clusters Programme - Update and Land Disposals 

Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday 5th July 2022, 3.00 pm | Kirklees Council 

Cabinet Report – Residential Development in Huddersfield Town Centre.  Approved 26th 
July 2022 

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g7181/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th
-Jul-2022%2015.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
Cabinet Report – Housing Delivery Plan Update. 27th June 2023 
 

Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday 27th June 2023, 2.00 pm | Kirklees Council 
 

9. Service Director responsible  
 
Joanne Bartholomew 
Service Director for Development  
joanne.bartholomew@kirklees.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g6297/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jan-2020%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g6297/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jan-2020%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5959
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=6436
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=7060
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g7181/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Jul-2022%2015.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/g7181/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Jul-2022%2015.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=7331
mailto:joanne.bartholomew@kirklees.gov.uk


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

[Company name] 

Housing Delivery Plan 
Update – Appendix 1 
Cabinet Report – 27 June 2023 

Page 15



 

 

Cabinet report: Housing Delivery Plan Update 

June 2023 

 

Appendix 1 

 

This report provides an overview of the various strands of activity relating to housing 

growth which are currently being progressed by the Housing Growth and Regeneration 

Service. 

 

1 Strategic Allocations 

1.1 Bradley Park –  

 

The full allocation at Bradley Park will deliver around 2,000 units, including the homes 
to be delivered as part of the privately owned Bradley Villa Farm. 
 
The Housing Growth team’s current focus is on delivering a first phase on its own land.  
This, combined with the homes which have permission at Bradley Villa Farm, will 
deliver around 750 homes in a first Phase of which 20% (around 150) will be 
affordable. 
 
Working with consultants, the Housing Growth team are currently undertaking detailed 
work on the highways access arrangements.  Other preparatory work for the 
procurement of a development partner is also being progressed. 
As set out in sections 1 and 2.2 of the Cabinet report, capital investment is required to 
support Bradley moving to the delivery phase.  This support will fund the detailed 
investigative and enabling work that will allow the project to move forward to the point 
of procurement of a partner and then construction. 
 
1.2 Dewsbury Riverside 

 

The Dewsbury Riverside site is the largest housing allocation in the Kirklees Local 

Plan, which will deliver up to 4,000 homes alongside community infrastructure and 

open spaces. The Council owns approximately 30 hectares of the 160 hectare site, 

including a key access into the site and first phase of development. 

 

Planning permission was granted at Strategic Planning Committee in November 2022 

for the first phase of development at Dewsbury Riverside of up to 350 homes and 

supporting infrastructure on the Council’s land. The Housing Growth Team are now 

working alongside Homes England, West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) and 

Network Rail, to explore funding and delivery partner options, along with working to 

maximise the sustainable transport connectivity that the new Ravensthorpe Railway 

Station will bring which is being built within and adjacent to the Dewsbury Riverside 

site as part of the Trans Pennine Route Upgrade. 

 

Work is also on-going with the local community and Ward Cllrs to revise the 

masterplan for the site and realise the place making and sustainability opportunities, 

Page 16



 

 

building on the innovative use of the Place Standard tool as part of the community 

engagement that was undertaken before the planning application on the Council’s land 

was submitted. An Inclusive Communities Framework is being developed specifically 

for Dewsbury Riverside working with colleagues in the Communities Team and public 

engagement officers from Homes England in order to embed public engagement 

principles for every development stage at Dewsbury Riverside. 

 

 
 

To deliver a key first phase of opening up the Dewsbury Riverside site for 

development, the allotments south of Ravensthorpe Road required relocation. The 

Housing Growth team have worked with existing allotment holders, Council officers in 

the Allotment and Capital Delivery teams, and local external partners AHR Architects 

and Casey to construct replacement allotments close to the original location within the 

Dewsbury Riverside site. Construction was completed in April 2023 of the 43 new 

allotment plots to replace the existing 25 plots, with 17 new designated parking 

spaces, water supply across the site, and replacement sheds and greenhouses for 

existing tenants. 

  

 
 

Page 17



 

 

2 Town Centre Living 

2.1 Huddersfield Town Centre Living Plan 

 

In July 2022, Cabinet endorsed the Huddersfield Town Centre Living plan which set 

out the vision for delivering high quality residential development in Huddersfield town 

centre, linked to the wider delivery of the Huddersfield Blueprint.  

 

The first step in the delivery of this vision is for the Council to demonstrate the quality 

of homes which can be delivered in the town centre using its own assets – Estate and 

Somerset buildings.  

 

 
 

A further report will be brought to Cabinet when the outcome of Thirteen’s work is 

complete. 

 

2.2 103 New Street 

 

This development supports the regeneration of a landmark building as part of the 

Blueprint vision for Huddersfield Town Centre. A council loan has supported the 

redevelopment of the building for 75 student accommodation units.   

 

2.3 Daisy Hill Dewsbury 

The Daisy Hill Neighbourhood project is a key element of the Dewsbury Blueprint, and 

one of the 9 schemes in the Dewsbury Town Investment Plan that have received 

funding from the Towns Fund.  

 

Following approval of the Towns Fund by central government, work has been 

progressing to acquire key properties in the Daisy Hill area to create commercially 

viable opportunities for developers of high quality, sustainable homes in the future that 

will contribute to the regeneration of the Daisy Hill area and wider Dewsbury town 

centre alongside the other Town Investment Plan projects.  

 

At the same time as endorsing the 

Town Centre Living plan, Cabinet gave 

approval for the Council to enter into an 

exclusivity agreement with Thirteen 

Group Limited for a period of up to 

eighteen months, whilst they undertake 

feasibility and viability work on the 

building to establish if they can deliver 

a high-quality residential product in 

these refurbished buildings.  This 

feasibility work is currently in progress. 

Page 18



 

 

Housing Growth officers have also been working with colleagues at WYCA and Homes 

England to assess the potential development options for the Daisy Hill neighbourhood 

area, including compiling technical and financial viability evidence to inform the nature 

of development and engagement with the development market. This work will be 

progressed further throughout 2023. 

 

 
 

3 Specialist and Supported Housing 

 

To contribute towards delivery of the significant number of new homes needed, the 
Council has been working successfully with partners both in the private and public 
sector, including colleagues from across the Council and NHS, Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCG’s), Housing Associations, Housing developers, the third sector and our 
housing forums, to achieve our shared outcomes. 
 
 

 
 
For example, Mayman Lane in Batley where the Council worked with Calderdale, 
Wakefield and Barnsley in partnership with the National Health Service England which 
allocated £1.784m capital grant to fund the provision of 6 self-contained bungalows 
with care and support for people with a profound learning disability. The scheme is 
being delivered by specialist provider Choice Support a registered charity with 
expertise in this provision.  
 

 

Page 19



 

 

At Nabcroft Lane in Crosland Moor the Council supported Unity Housing and Chartford 
Housing to deliver nineteen homes, including two older persons bungalows (age 55+) 
and four specialist supported apartments for people who have been experiencing 
homelessness. The four apartments were completed in March 2022, and the 
bungalows were completed in the summer 2022. Homes England grant funding was 
secured by Unity Housing Association to aid the development for the affordable homes 
on both sites, and Section 106 monies provided by the Council assisted in ensuring 
the scheme remained viable.  
 
Union Gardens, Liversedge is a brownfield site that previously had planning 
permission for housing, but progress had stalled. The Council worked in partnership 
with the registered provider to secure Homes England funding, enabling them to 
deliver accommodation for vulnerable adults with learning and physical disabilities. 
The twelve units are a mixture of one and two bed apartments as well as a two-
bedroom detached bungalow. This type of accommodation means we can now 
facilitate a move back to Kirklees for some individuals who had been placed 
elsewhere.  
 

3.1 Extra Care 

Ashbrow 

 

The Ashbrow scheme will deliver 98 market (for sale) homes, 13 homes for affordable 
rent and 50 homes within a Council Extra Care scheme. 
 
The project, particularly the Extra care scheme, has been very challenging to get 
started, in the context of the volatile construction market conditions caused by the 
pandemic, Britain leaving the EU, and the war in the Ukraine.  Despite this, however, 
the Extra Care scheme started on site late in 2022, and the development is now 
progressing to programme.  It is due to be complete in September 2024.  The Extra 
Care scheme will provide much needed accommodation for the district’s older 
population who have both a housing need and care need.  It will deliver specialist 
accommodation, each with its “own front door”, allowing people to live independently 
for longer, and with the potential to free up large Council housing which is being 
underoccupied. 
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

A number of market 
and affordable homes 
on the site are already 
complete and are 
occupied, thereby 
contributing to meeting 
overall housing need. 
 

Page 20



 

 

Kenmore Drive 

 

The Council is working in partnership with Housing 21 to deliver the site at Kenmore 
Drive, Cleckheaton.  The scheme will deliver 80 Extra Care affordable homes for rent. 
Good progress was made on this scheme over the course of 2022, and in December 
2022 the Council disposed of the site to Housing 21, at the same time entering into a 
grant agreement to contribute £500k of s.106 funds to support delivery of the homes 
(Cabinet approval for this having been secured in May 2020).  Housing 21 have also 
secured a substantial grant from Homes England for the scheme. 
 
Unfortunately, early in 2023, immediately prior to work starting on site, Housing 21’s 
contractor went into administration. Housing 21 are currently looking at alternative 
routes to construct the scheme.  They have stressed to the Council and to Homes 
England their commitment to delivering the scheme, however it is possible that it will 
be the end of 2023 before they have a building contract in place.  The Housing Growth 
team will continue to work with Housing 21 throughout 2023 in order to ensure that 
this important scheme is delivered. 
 
4 Registered Providers Programme 

 

The Council is working with Thirteen Housing Group, one of Homes England’s 
strategic partners, to deliver around 200 affordable homes on five sites located across 
the district.  The focus for these sites is on delivering energy efficient, net carbon zero 
ready homes.  Thirteen bring resources and expertise to the Council’s housing delivery 
programme, particularly in relation to the strategic funding they receive from Homes 
England for housing delivery. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Illustrative impression 

  

On the other sites in the programme, Thirteen are having pre-application discussions 
with the Local Planning Authority about their proposals.  Applications have also been 
made for One Public Estate Brownfield Housing Fund grant, to make two of the more 
difficult, brownfield sites more viable.  The outcome of these grant applications is 
expected in summer 2023. 
 

5 Accelerated Construction Programme 

 

 

Cabinet approval was secured in July 
2022 to dispose of the sites to Thirteen 
Group. Thirteen are working on the sites 
as a programme, with the most 
advanced site being Main Avenue at 
Cowlersley.  A design and build 
contractor has been identified for this 
site, and a planning application will be 
made in 2023, with work expected to 
start in mid 2024. 
 

Page 21



 

 

The Council has successfully secured an allocation of grant investment from Homes 

England’s Accelerated Construction Programme to develop homes on the Soothill site.  

There is a requirement for the homes to be built using Modern Methods of Construction 

at an agreed accelerated pace of delivery.   

  

 
 
Homes under construction at Soothill  
 
5.1 Soothill  

The Council are working in partnership with Keepmoat to deliver 254 market (for sale) 
homes and 65 affordable homes on the Soothill, Batley. 
 
Site infrastructure works funded by Homes England were completed in the summer of 
2022. The homes are now under construction, with the first completions of both market 
and affordable homes having occurred at the end of April.  The homes on the site are 
being built at an accelerated pace of 5.4 homes per month, with overall completion of 
the site due by 2027. 
 
6 Housing Brokerage Service 

 
The Housing Brokerage Service operates to provide assistance, where needed, for 
stalled housing development sites across Kirklees. Officers in the Housing Growth 
Team can be contacted via: Housing.Regeneration@kirklees.gov.uk and are happy to 
consider issues that are a barrier to development.  
 
The team can provide advice around development viability issues, the Council’s pre-
application planning process, and explore opportunities for external funding from third 
parties such as WYCA and Homes England. 
 
The team also work closely with colleagues in the Planning Policy Team to understand 
which sites have not started or stalled and can provide information about these to 
interested developers to encourage partnership working to unlock sites. 
 
Over recent years the team have assisted a number of landowners/developers in 
bidding for the WYCA Brownfield Housing Fund to unlock brownfield sites. Specific 
sites where the Brokerage Team have been involved in discussions include; Newsome 
Mills, Westgate Cleckheaton, former Midlothian Garage site, New Mill Road, Holmfirth.         
        
  

 

Page 22

mailto:Housing.Regeneration@kirklees.gov.uk


 

 

7 Pipeline sites   
 

A number of sites have been identified for potential disposal where this will support 
Housing Growth outcomes.  In many cases these sites are in strong market areas and 
the Council has already been approached by developers and or registered providers 
in relation to a number of the sites.  The Council is currently looking at options on a 
site by site basis to enable the sites to be brought forward for housing and delivered 
quickly alongside introducing mechanisms to manage the risk of potential land 
banking. 
 
As set out in sections 1 and 2.3 of the Cabinet report, following on from extensive 
feasibility work, where appropriate we are seeking to dispose of sites in the 
programme where this supports delivery of housing growth outcomes. 
 
Overall Delivery position 
 

Live or completed projects Units to be delivered 2022/26 

Union Gardens- complete 12 

Nabcroft Lane - complete 19 

Ashbrow - onsite 161 – incl 50 Extra Care 

Kenmore Drive  80 Extra Care  

Soothill - onsite 319 

Registered Provide Clusters – In planning 207 

Estate / Somerset Buildings 44 

103 New Street – partial completion 75 

total 917 

 

Strategic Sites Units to be delivered 2024/2030 

Dewsbury Riverside – PP granted First phase 350 

Bradley Park – viability work underway First phase 474 

total 824 

 

Pipeline Sites Units to be delivered 2024/2028 

Gomersal School 48 

Upper Clough 40 

Flint St 45 

Fenay Lane 190 

total 383 

 

Delivery through the programme 
estimate 

Units to be delivered 2022/2030 

Cumulative total 2,124 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

Appendix 2 - Housing Delivery Plan Update June 2023 
 
Affordable Home Ownership Fee Charging 
 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1. Increasing home ownership for First Time Buyers in the UK has been a cross party 

policy since the 1990s and is a current Government priority.  
 

2. The Government has introduced several initiatives targeted at First Time Buyers. 
This has included a number of Affordable Home Ownership (AHO) schemes where 
private developers build properties that can be purchased at a discount below 
market value by buyers who meet certain qualifying criteria. 

 
3. These initiatives have included Starter Homes and Discount Market Sale Homes 

which were led by a previous Government. 
 

4. First Homes, which is the current government’s preferred discounted market 
tenure, were introduced in May 2021 and became a mandatory Central 
Government requirement from 28 December 2021.  

 
5. They are to be delivered via Section 106 planning obligations on residential 

development sites. One quarter (25%) of all affordable homes secured by Section 
106 planning obligations will be First Homes.  

 
6. Central Government has established mandatory national criteria relating to the 

delivery of First Homes. Local authorities can choose to introduce their own local 
eligibility criteria. The Council’s First Homes Position Statement and eligibility 
criteria can be found here: https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/planning-
applications/pdf/first-homes-position-statement.pdf 

 
7. It is the developer’s responsibility to sell First Homes to eligible applicants. 

However, the Council will be involved in the sales process for First Homes, both at 
initial sale stage and any subsequent resales as well as having other ongoing 
responsibilities, such as approving letting requests.  

 
8. The Council is also involved in the sale process for Starter Homes and Discounted 

Market Sale properties. 
 
9. During the sales process of these AHO properties, the Local Authority is required 

to review applications from potential purchasers, along with accompanying 
evidence, to assess their eligibility against the agreed criteria and issue necessary 
approval documents confirming that the sale has been undertaken in accordance 
with requirements of the S106 agreement. 

 
2.0 Charging a Fee 
 
10. In the context of the significant on-going and future burden on officer time, it is 

recommended that a fee is charged to cover the legal and administrative costs 
incurred in relation to the process of administering the sale of AHO properties. 

Page 24

https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/planning-applications/pdf/first-homes-position-statement.pdf
https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/planning-applications/pdf/first-homes-position-statement.pdf


 

 

 
11. Failure to implement an appropriate fee will result in the Council picking up the cost 

of its administration in ensuring the delivery of AHO properties. The burden of 
administering these properties is in perpetuity; therefore, it is essential that an 
appropriate fee is levied to cover all subsequent re-sales too. 

 
12. The Council estimates that this process takes approximately 11.2 hours for an 

initial sale and 13.5 hours for a resale. This is based on officer experience of 
processing Starter Homes and Discount Market Sales Properties. 

 
13. A cost schedule has been prepared by Finance colleagues with input from 

Housing Growth and Legal Services officers. Based on the cost schedule, the 

following fees are proposed to be charged: 

For initial sales = £348.73 
For resales = £394.79 

14. The fees set out above will be applied to all future sales, unless the S106 

agreement states otherwise, to cover the costs associated with that individual sale. 

 
15. The money will be split between Housing Growth and Legal Services in the 

following way: 

 Housing 
Growth 

Legal Services 

Initial Sale £202.40 £146.32 

Resale £248.47 £146.32 

 
16. The fee will be paid by the Seller (the developer in the first instance and the current 

owner for all subsequent sales). Where historic S106 Agreements state that the 
Buyer will pay, this will still stand. 
 

17. Where historic S106 Agreements specify a sum in perpetuity of £250, the money 

will be split £104.68 to Housing Growth and £146.32 to Legal Services. 

 
 

18. The Council will not issue the final Compliance Certificate until it is in receipt of the 
fee. 

 
19. Fees and charges must be reviewed at least once per annum. Service Directors 

have authority to implement new charges and amend existing fees and charges to 
achieve budget targets, to account for changes in legislation and market 
conditions, in consultation with the appropriate Strategic Director, relevant Portfolio 
Holder and Chief Finance Officer.  
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Name of meeting: Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
Date:    3rd July 2023    
Title of report:  Local Centres Update  
    
Purpose of report:  
 
To update the Panel on progress being made on the Local Centres programme. 
 

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £500k or more, or to have a significant 
effect on two or more electoral wards?  

N/A 
 
 
 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan 
(key decisions and private reports)? 
 

Key Decision – N/A 
 
 
Private Report/Private Appendix - No 
 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

No 
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & name 
 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for 
Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for 
Legal Governance and Commissioning?   
 

David Shepherd – 20th June 2023 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
N/A 

Cabinet member portfolio Councillor Graham Turner – Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration  

 
Electoral wards affected: Batley, Cleckheaton, Colne Valley, Heckmondwike, Holme Valley South 
 
Ward councillors consulted: Those in Batley, Cleckheaton, Heckmondwike and Holmfirth are 
actively engaged in the local centres programme. Ward Councillors in Marsden are aware of Marsden 
Levelling Up Round 2 bid and have been part of a recent place standards exercise. They were recently 
briefed on the 27th June Cabinet paper. 

 
Public or private: Public.  
 

Has GDPR been considered?  Yes.   
 
1. Summary 

 
The paper updates panel on the latest position on the local centres programme. In particular the 
additional funding drawn into the programme via the Levelling Up Fund. 
 

2. Information required to take a decision. 
 
Background 
 

2.1 Investment in local centres represents an exciting opportunity to strengthen key towns and 
villages across Kirklees. Cabinet agreed at its meeting of 16th March 2021 the following 
summarised matters: 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


1. To agree the next tranche of town centres for investment namely: Batley, Cleckheaton, 
Holmfirth, and Heckmondwike  

2. All to benefit from additional £1.5m per centre allocated as part of the Council’s Capital Plan  
3. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director for Growth and Regeneration to approve 

individual plans and projects in consultation with the Portfolio holder regeneration. 
4. To agree the generic list of project or programme types that funding can be used towards  
5. To note and/or agree timeframe for delivery; staffing resources to support this initiative and 

general governance arrangements. 
 
2.2 The full report can be found at the link below: 

 
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s40077/V5%20Final%20Small%20Centres%20Cab
inet%20Report%2016th%20March%202021.pdf 
 

2.3 This programme is a large undertaking with 4 consultation and masterplan activities being 
undertaken either at the same time or in quick succession. The progress to date is set out in table 
1 below: 

 
Table 1 - Local Centres – Progress to Date 

 

Centre Core Exercise  Dates Undertaken or 
Completed 

Batley Place Standard Round 1 12th July – 9th Aug 2021 

Round 2 - Prioritisation February 2022 

Masterplan 
Consultation 

 21st Oct – 21st Nov 
2022 

Masterplan Adoption  Summer 2023 

 

Cleckheaton Place Standard  Round 1 1st Sept – 11th Oct 2021 

Round 2 - Prioritisation June 2022 

Masterplan 
Consultation 

 29th June – 29th July 
2022 

Masterplan Adoption  10th Feb 2023 

 

Heckmondwike Place Standard  Round 1 4th Oct – 8th Nov 2021 

Round 2 - Prioritisation June 2022 

Masterplan 
Consultation 

 19th May - 19th June 
2023 

Masterplan Adoption  Autumn 2023 

 

Holmfirth  Place Standard  Round 1 6th Sept – 31st Oct 2022 

Round 2 - Prioritisation May 2022 

Masterplan 
Consultation 

 17th Nov – 17th Dec 
2022 

Masterplan Adoption  26th May 2023 

 
2.4 As part of this exercise, in each centre, a series of priority projects have been identified for 

development and delivery. Table 2 below highlights these: 
 

Table 2 - Local Centres – Priority Projects 

 

 Centre Key Project Identified Intended Next Step 

Batley Commercial Street Phase 1 Now a LUF2 project 

Commercial Street Phase 2 Now a LUF2 project 

Market Place Now a LUF2 project 

Tesco Link Now a LUF2 project 

   

Page 28

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s40077/V5%20Final%20Small%20Centres%20Cabinet%20Report%2016th%20March%202021.pdf
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s40077/V5%20Final%20Small%20Centres%20Cabinet%20Report%2016th%20March%202021.pdf


Cleckheaton Savoy Square & Market Procure multi-dis team to design scheme – 
Summer 23 

Spen Bottoms & Park 
Entrance  

Procure multi-dis team to develop a 
feasibility study for the area – Summer 23 

Market Place  Being delivered through TCF - A638 
scheme, following full business case 
approval from WYCA – Likely delivery - 
Autumn 23 

   

Heckmondwike This requires finalisation 
following analysis of 
consultation results which 
ended on 19th June 2023.  

Examination of consultation feedback on 
Masterplan 

Holmfirth  Access Plan Being Delivered through WYCA funding – 
Starting Summer 2023. 

Towngate   Procure multi-dis team to develop options 
for the site – Summer 23 

Gateway & wayfinding Project  Undertake feasibility study for options and 
estimated costs – Autumn 23 

River Holme Masterplan Procure multi-Dis team to develop a 
feasibility study for the area – Summer 23  

 
External Funding 
 

2.5 As with all town centre programmes officers continue to identify external funding sources to help 
deliver projects. The local centres and major projects services have been successful in bidding to 
government for several funding streams in particular Levelling Up funding (Round 2), the UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF), Transforming Cities Fund (TCF), Street for People and Active 
Travel Funds. All of which, as highlighted below, will assist in delivering on core masterplan 
objectives. 

  
 Levelling Up Funding (LUF2)  
 

2.6 In early 2022 central government announced the second round of Levelling Up Funding (LUF2). 
The process was competitive. In the early announcements (late 2022) Batley was selected. A 
project worth £14.385m is now funded with a grant of £12.0032m coming from LUF2. A further 
announcement was made in the budget in March 2023 for Marsden which allocated £5.605m to 
the redevelopment of New Mill. Details of both projects are set out below in paragraphs 2.9 to 
2.11. 
 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
 

2.7 To help with project development in the local centres programme a number of bids have been 
made to UKSPF. As a result, the following have been secured: 

 

 £120,000 additional masterplanning/feasibility resource – some of this will go towards local 
centres masterplan work.   

 £285,000 – towards project development in Cleckheaton and Holmfirth.   
 
2.8 Members are referred to the cabinet report and decision relating to UKSPF from 11th October 

2022. See link below: 
 
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s48490/USKPF%2011%20October%20Cabinet%2
0v4%20final.pdf 

 
The Batley Project  
 

2.9 The Batley LUF2 project consists of a town centre wide programme of interventions which can be 
split into five elements: 

 Page 29

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s48490/USKPF%2011%20October%20Cabinet%20v4%20final.pdf
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s48490/USKPF%2011%20October%20Cabinet%20v4%20final.pdf


1. Commercial Street – Phase 1 – a series of street scape improvements between Market 
Square and Wards Hill – particularly tackling some of the issues of parking outside of 
allocated bays and anti-social driver behaviour. 

2. Commercial Street – Phase 2 – adjustments to Commercial Street between Wards Hill and 
Hick Lane to create a better visitor/customer environment balancing this with needs of 
businesses. 

3. A Public Realm link between the Tesco car park and Commercial Street. 
4. Improvements to Market Square and Market Place public ream areas to create better and 

modern public space which is fit for the future. 
5. A refit of the former JBL building on Commercial Street 

 
The Marsden Project 

 
2.10 New Mill on Broughton Road in Marsden has been awarded LUF2 funding. This project is a 

private sector led project with funding awarded as gap to address viability issues associated with 
the redevelopment of this substantial mill complex. The Council in this instance will act in its role 
as responsible body and will administer the grant allocated to it by DLUHC. The concept scheme 
proposes a mix of commercial, retail, and residential space across the mill complex. A level of 
demolition is proposed. 
 

2.11 The timeframe for delivery on both was March 2025 but officers understand that due to a variety 
of factors this is likely to be extended to March 2026.  
 
Discussion 
 

2.12 Strategically, the Local Centres Programme has so far been successful. Through place standard 
and masterplan engagement it has connected the Council, through ward members, with local 
communities to shape a longer-term vision and strategy for local town centres.  The process has 
identified, or is in the process of identifying, a series of interventions to strengthen individual 
towns. 
 

2.13 From a funding perspective the initial commitment has levered in an additional £18m of combined 
LUF2 and UKSPF funding. This figure is further expanded by the private sector investment that 
will need to be put into Marsden New Mill which potentially takes this figure beyond £30m. We 
can add to this the prior investment from WYCA in Holmfirth of approximately £5.2m for the 
access scheme and the WY Local Transport Plan Streets for People Funding (going into the 
Batley programme) of £1m. In addition, a significant capital investment is being made into 
Heckmondwike bus station of £4.9m meaning investment from outside the Council into our 
identified local centres projects is over £40m once recent Active Travel Funding from West 
Yorkshire Combined Authority is included and is in addition to investment in stations and the rail 
line as part of Trans-Pennine Route Upgrade. 

 
Levelling Up – Round 2 Awards 

 
2.14 Cabinet will be considering (27th June 2023) a proposal to accept external funding of just over 

£12m from the Government to support delivery of the Batley Town Centre LUF project and 
likewise accept external funding of £5.605m to support delivery of the Marsden project. In the 
case of the latter, Members should note that the Council will act as Accountable Body for the 
grant and administer it accordingly.  
 
Local Centres Projects 
 

2.15 It can be seen from the tables in section 2.3 and 2.4 that progress has been made on 
engagement, master planning and project identification on all the originally identified centres of 
Batley, Cleckheaton, Heckmondwike and Holmfirth. Officers are moving into the project 
development and delivery phase for most of the centres.  
 
Marsden 
 

2.16 Marsden is potentially a new addition to the local centres programme. This is brought about by 
the LUF2 award of funding set out above as well as investment in the station and line as part of Page 30



the Trans Pennine Route Upgrade (TRU). This combination means that Marsden, in the opinion 
of officers, requires some support particularly in terms of visioning, master planning and setting a 
future strategy for improvements to the main centre that complement the investment identified.  
The ward has recently undergone a place standard exercise which is helpful and will provide a 
source of community-based information to support this.  

 
2.17 To complete the masterplan work, officers are utilising the UKSPF funding identified in section 

2.7.  
 

2.18 Once the master planning is complete and projects identified further funding will be required to 
assist with delivery. Officers will pursue funding opportunities external to the Council to develop 
and deliver those identified. 
           

3. Implications for the Council 
 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 None specifically as a result of this report. 

 
Working with people 
 

3.2 Collaborating with partners is key to ensuring the Council get the best outcomes for citizens, 
communities, and Kirklees as a whole.  As part of the local centres programme considerable 
engagement through place standards and master planning has been undertaken. This process 
will continue as projects move through the development phases. In Batley further engagement 
with businesses and town centre users will be required as the schemes get developed in more 
detail. This should help shape the projects. 

 
Working with Partners 

 
3.3 The Council has engaged with members of the public and landowners, businesses, and 

stakeholders during development of Masterplans this will continue as individual interventions are 
worked up. Officers will continue to develop relationships with partnerships/colleagues in DLUHC 
and the developers/property owners in Marsden as part of the levelling up agreements. 

 
Place Based Working 

 
3.4 The development of the Local Centres Masterplans is informed by Place Standard engagement 

exercises. This has already engaged town centre stakeholders, businesses, and users to help shape 
the overall approach to redeveloping the identified areas. Each masterplan in turn has used this 
information to formulate proposals which strengthen individual centres. 
 
Climate Change and Air Quality 
 

3.5 Both climate change and air quality will be considerations of masterplans and projects moving 
forward, informing the planning processes and the future detailed design work.. For example, the 
promotion of better connectivity through the area and to surrounding communities particularly via 
active travel will contribute to reducing adverse transport derived impacts on communities and 
improve public health. 
 
Improving outcomes for children 
 

3.6 All masterplans seek to create more family friendly environments. Additionally, streets and spaces 
will be designed with all generations in mind making them both safe and inclusive at the same time. 
 
Cost of Living Crisis 
 

3.7 Improved local centres will create a more attractive environment for businesses to thrive helping to 
stimulate the creation of a variety of new job opportunities. 

 
 Page 31



4. Consultees and their opinions 
 
As noted in various sections above engagement has been at the heart of local centre programme 
development. This will continue through the next stage of the masterplan and project delivery. 
 

5. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 

Officers recommend that: 
 
1. Members of the Scrutiny Panel note the content of this report. 

 
6. Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s Comments 
 

Cllr Graham Turner has commented below: 
 
Despite tough economic times its still the ambition of the cabinet to invest and help regenerate 
our smaller town centres. 
 
I particularly welcome the LUF funding for Marsden which has the potential to start the process of 
regenerating the town centre and dealing with the problem of what to do with old mills.  
 
There is huge potential in future years for Marsden to become a much more vibrant economic 
centre, with the Trans Pennine upgrade playing a huge part in the future of the town. 
 
I fully support all the investment across the borough and look forward to seeing these projects 
start, in line with the timetables in today’s report. 
 

7. Contact officer(s)  
 
Simon Taylor – Head of Town Centre Programmes 
 

8. Background Papers and History of Decisions 
 

Cabinet Report – 16th March 2021 – Investing in Small Town Centres 
Cabinet Report – 11th October 2022 - UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
Cabinet Report – 27th June 2023 – Levelling Up Fund Round 2 and Local Centres 
 

9. Service Director responsible  
 
Joanne Bartholomew – Service Director Development and Co-Vid Recovery 

Page 32


	Agenda
	6 Introduction to the Growth & Regeneration Directorate
	��G&R Scrutiny Panel�An Overview of Growth & Regeneration��3rd July 2023�
	Welcome and Introduction 
	Agenda for today; a focus on Growth and Regeneration�
	Slide Number 4
	Why does this matter?
	Political priorities
	In the next 5 years….
	Delivering Our Vision for Kirklees; what we do 

	7 Housing Delivery Plan Update
	8 Small Centres Programme

